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Commanding a Rover – Learning Experience 

Questions and Answers 
 

Question: 

For the target Group #6 - Youth from Northern and remote communities, could you please define these 

terms? 

Answer: 

The North and Remote Areas are locations in prescribed northern zones (Zone A) or in the prescribed 

intermediate zones (Zone B) as defined by the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) or those that meet the 

Arctic and the North as defined in the Canada’s Arctic and Northern Policy Framework. 

Remote areas may also include locations with logistical challenges, such as areas with limited Internet 

access, classrooms with limited access to technology equipment, and activities outside urban centres 

(i.e. regional municipalities, rural regions, regional districts, regional governments, etc.). 

Question: 

 For this new RFP, can there be multiple awardees, or will there just be one? 

 Will there be multiple awards to multiple contractors? Or one awardee? 

Answer: 

The goal of this RFP is to get a single awardee to meet the needs of the six target groups in regions 

across the country. Bids of collaboration between several organizations will be accepted. 

Question: 

 We're working on educational content and, with our partners, technology to deliver a rover control 

experience for youth. Could we leverage that content and technology in a proposal that would meet 

the new RFP's goals for inclusion and accessibility? Or is the intent to keep existing work like ours 

entirely separate from the new RFP? 

 Are we able to adapt existing materials we have? 

Answer: 

The content of the activity can be leveraged from existing activities or material. The content is expected 

to be adapted to meet the target group needs. If the content is brought from an other project, the 

bidder must have acquired the intellectual property rights and licenses. 

Question: 

 What level of realism is being sought? Thank you for clarifying that. 

https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/tax/individuals/topics/about-your-tax-return/tax-return/completing-a-tax-return/deductions-credits-expenses/line-25500-northern-residents-deductions/line-25500-places-located-prescribed-zones.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/tax/individuals/topics/about-your-tax-return/tax-return/completing-a-tax-return/deductions-credits-expenses/line-25500-northern-residents-deductions/line-25500-places-located-prescribed-zones.html
https://www.rcaanc-cirnac.gc.ca/eng/1560523306861/1560523330587


Page 2 of 9 
 

 So the activity is only about "operating" it... not building models of it? How then would that connect 

to curriculum? 

Answer: 

The goal of the initiative Commanding a rover - Learning Experience is to permit underrepresented 

youth in STEM to remotely operate a real and/or virtual rover in a simulated environment to achieve 

science goals. The proposed rover activities have clear links with STEM concepts and appropriate 

Canadian school curricula for grade 6-9 (Secondary 3 in Quebec). Lunar mission simulation and proposed 

lunar science activities include details on aspects of realistic lunar missions such as the language used, 

roles planned for the activity, the mission team and how it operates. Scenarios allow youth to 

experience the reality of data collection to answer questions about lunar science: manipulation of the 

rover from a remote control software, simulation of exploration of the surface of the moon on an 

analogue terrain or on a simulated lunar ground containing geological characteristics of the moon, 

scientific experiments designed for lunar conditions, etc. 

Question: 

 When the RFP speaks of a 'real' rover, what does that entail? 

 The activity has to include a "real rover"? Not a model? 

 Can rovers be small in size? 

Answer: 

For this initiative ‘real rover’ means a physical functioning equipment designed to work on an analogue 

terrain simulating realistic components of lunar missions and lunar scientific activities. Examples: The 

rover operates the way an exploration vehicle does, has instrumentation and control systems similar to 

those used in space exploration, the process for organizing and executing that mission would be very 

similar to what happens in space exploration, etc. Examples of rover are available at https://asc-

csa.gc.ca/eng/rovers/default.asp. 

Question: 

 Do you have a virtual rover program already developed that can be used for this project? Or would 

the software/program have to be developed from scratch? 

 Is there any existing material planned for this project? If so, which one? 

Answer: 

No, is up to the bidder to have the infrastructure and the material to develop and deliver the activities. 

Question: 

Do we have access to scientific content related to the project or do we have to provide everything on 

our side? 

Answer: 

The Contractor will need to develop scientific content related to the project. The CSA will validate the 

https://asc-csa.gc.ca/eng/rovers/default.asp
https://asc-csa.gc.ca/eng/rovers/default.asp
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scientific content provided by the Contractor and, if necessary, could provide public domain information 

on ongoing lunar space missions. 

Question: 

If we are proposing a "real rover" experience do we also have to provide a "simulation rover" 

experience? 

Answer: 

Real, virtual rovers, and a combination of both are accepted for the simulation of realistic lunar 

exploration missions for youth in grade 6 to 9 (Secondary 3 in Quebec) from underrepresented groups in 

STEM. 

Question: 

Is there any info you can give about the CSA's interests and goals in putting out this specific RFP about 

virtual rovers? 

Answer: 

Space has a unique ability to inspire young people across all genders, cultures and communities to 

pursue an interest and studies in STEM subjects.  The goal of the initiative Commanding a rover - 

Learning Experience is to permit underrepresented youth in STEM to remotely operate a real and/or 

virtual rover in a simulated environment to achieve science goals. Rover and rover technology activities 

are powerful catalysts to increase a widespread interest in science and technology that can get or keep 

youth interested in STEM and inspire them to eventually transition into the STEM workforce. Often, 

underrepresented youth in STEM have limited access to activities about space. By adapting rover 

activities to theirs needs, CSA hopes to give youth the experience of using the leadership and teamwork 

skills required when working on a lunar exploration mission. CSA prefers the youth have the opportunity 

to operate real rovers. CSA recognizes that a virtual model operated in a simulated terrain can also offer 

a realistic experience and may be needed during periods of the year where weather does not permit the 

use of an external terrain and when an internal terrain is not available. 

Question: 

Can you specify what you mean by everywhere in Canada? (Scope p. 43) 

Answer: 

Across Canada means the ten (10) provinces and three (3) territories. The CSA recognizes that the 

service may not be available everywhere in Canada. The proposal must specify the regions in which the 

contractor plans to provide rover activities, taking into account that the youth from the six (6) target 

groups must be able to participate free of charge in the rover activities offered and at least 50% of the 

participants must come from the six (6) target groups. One of the target groups is for youth from 

Northern and remote communities. 
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Question: 

 I am interested in finding out more about targets for underrepresented populations in terms of 

numbers and breakdown by region. 

 What is the anticipated impact for this project? (in terms of numbers reached/percentages across 

the country)? 

 How many destinations/provinces/territories need to be covered? And how many meetings per 

destination? 

 So just to clarify: there is no target # of students/experiences you have in mind? Just what you 

mentioned about all the provinces/territories across Canada and the 6 underrepresented groups? 

Want to make sure we're hitting around the right target in our proposal. 

Answer: 

The proposal must provide in which locations, provinces or territories the bidder is able to deliver rover 

activities and the potential number of youth the bidder could reach. The goal is to deliver activities to 

youth from each of the six (6) target underrepresented groups across the country. One of the target 

groups is for youth from Northern and remote communities. At least 50% of the participants in the rover 

activities must be from the target groups. The activities must be adapted to the target audience and 

take in account their needs and barriers. The activities proposed must have realistic components of 

lunar mission simulation and lunar scientific activities and have meaningful impact for the youth 

participating in the activities. 

Question: 

 When would you expect the Assessment Report in terms of timelines - end of project delivery? Prior 

to delivery? 

 Do you have an estimated or suggested timeframe for Phase 1 Project Management and Phase 2 

Content development? 

 I know you mentioned that timelines for deliverables are up to the organization. But just wondering 

if you had an estimated timeline e.g., for Phase 1/Project Management Plan and Phase 2/Content 

Development. 

Answer: 

The timeframe of the deliverables will depend on how the contractor likes to work and on existing 

infrastructure. The CSA recognizes several approaches could be used for this initiative. For example, the 

contractor could do the assessment of needs for the six target groups at the beginning, before 

developing and delivering the activities; or the contractor could provide a calendar with independent 

assessments of needs for each target group. Rover activities must be offered during the 2022-2023 and 

2023-2024 school years, during the summer holidays and during other holidays such as break weeks. 

CSA recognizes the rover activities may not start as soon as September 2022, but later during the 2022-

2023 school year. The Bidder must indicate in its project summary and in Annex G the activities and 

support material it plans to develop and deliver to youth in grades 6 to 9 (3rd grade in Quebec) and their 

educators, and an approximation of when each of the deliverables would be completed. Taking in 
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consideration many comments received from potential bidders and CSA operational needs, the original 

deadline to submit is extended to Thursday August 4, 2022 at 2:00 pm. 

Question: 

What can be included in the $800,000 budget? (Maximum funding p.4) 

Answer: 

The estimated direct and indirect costs to be able to deliver the deliverables. Applicable taxes are extra. 

Question: 

Does this budget have to include 100% of the equipment? 

Answer: 

The proposal must include the estimated costs and as many details as possible to have a realistic budget 

of the expenses that will be incurred during the project. 

Question: 

 Can you please clarify the funding options for Year 1 and Year 2? (i.e., would this be only delivery? 

Would we be expected to reduce the scope of our project for these additional years? 

 I was hoping to receive some clarification on the optional funding (60K Y1, 60K Y2) for the 

Commanding a Rover Learning Experience RFP. We understand that these are for additional 

(optional) years of funding. We just wanted to clarify what the purpose/eligibility of this additional 

funding is: e.g., to reach additional participants beyond what we anticipated? To reach participants 

that we anticipated reaching but couldn't reach due to connectivity/scheduling? Just want to clarify 

the scope as we prepare our budget. 

Answer: 

The scope of the initiative must be met by the end of the contract scheduled for August 31, 2024. The 

two (2) optional periods of one (1) year each are intended to provide the opportunity to continue the 

activities and engagement if there is existing interest among the target groups. 

Question: 

Is September 2022 the right date to start rover activities in class? Or is it September 2023? Because the 

offer does not seem to provide time for scenario design, programming, tests with students before 

carrying out the deployment of the project across the country. 

Answer: 

Rover activities must be offered during the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 school years, during the summer 

holidays and during other holidays such as break weeks. The CSA recognizes several approaches could 

be used for this initiative and, for 2022-2023 school year, the rover activities may not start as soon as 

September 2022, but later during the 2022-2023 school year. The Bidder must indicate in its project 
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summary and in Annex G the activities and support material it plans to develop and deliver to youth in 

grades 6 to 9 (3rd grade in Quebec) and their educators, and an approximation of when each of the 

deliverables would be completed. Taking in consideration many comments received from potential 

bidders and CSA operational needs, the original deadline to submit is extended to Thursday August 4, 

2022 at 2:00 pm. 

Question: 

 Several groups in Canada have spent several years working on and investing in tools, technologies 

and programs of relevance to this RFP. 

 Most recently CSA issued several AO awards (Grants & Contributions) for similar activities, in which 

multiple Canadian groups have now made sizeable investment commitments. 

 Several members of the Canadian exploration community are currently divided across two different 

groups working on CSA’s 2026 flight lunar rover mission (LRM) initiative, with a number of 

exclusivity agreements precluding combinations across the two teams. This will likely be resolved in 

2-3 months time when a single group is chosen.  

In light of the above, could CSA consider awarding more than one award if submissions merit, to capture 

more of the Canadian capacity that is currently investing in this area, at CSA’s recent encouragement 

(the recent AOs). And if not, might it not be beneficial to all for CSA to defer this solicitation until after 

the LRM down select later this summer, when the full range of Canadian capabilities could be combined 

without restriction? 

Answer: 

For the moment, the goal of this RFP is to get a single awardee to meet the needs of the six target 

groups in regions across the country. CSA would like to have the rover activities to start during the 

school year 2022-2023. CSA recognizes the rover activities may not start as soon as September 2022, but 

later during the 2022-2023 school year. Taking in consideration many comments received from potential 

bidders and CSA operational needs, the original deadline to submit is extended to Thursday August 4, 

2022 at 2:00 pm. 

Question: 

If we are looking at Aug 22nd, is there any benefit to going slightly longer to give full clearance from vac 

plans of teams / consortia, teacher’s vacations, researchers field seasons, and various space conferences 

happening in August? 

Answer: 

Taking in consideration many comments received from potential bidders and CSA operational needs, the 

original deadline to submit is extended to Thursday August 4, 2022 at 2:00 pm. With this extension, the 

RFP will have been published from May to August for a total of 11 weeks allowing for planning with 

consideration for vacations, conferences or other potential events. 
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Question: 

If the deposit is postponed to August, when should the product be delivered in functional condition? 

Answer: 

Taking in consideration many comments received from potential bidders and CSA operational needs, the 

original deadline to submit is extended to Thursday August 4, 2022 at 2:00 pm. The contract end date is 

maintained on August 31, 2024. Rover activities must be offered during the 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 

school years, during the summer holidays and during other holidays such as break weeks. The CSA 

recognizes several approaches could be used for this initiative, and that the rover activities may not start 

as soon as September 2022, but later during the 2022-2023 school year. The Bidder must indicate in its 

project summary and in Annex G the activities and support material it plans to develop and deliver to 

youth in grades 6 to 9 (3rd grade in Quebec) and their educators, and an approximation of when each of 

the deliverables would be completed. 

Question: 

Is the current request for proposals related to the Mission on the Moon: An Educational Program for 

Canadian Youth? If so, how? If not, could the results (or some of the results) of Mission on the Moon 

research be accessible when developing Commanding a rover? 

Answer: 

No, the content of Commanding a rover – Learning Experience is independent of any existing projects. 

CSA does not have control over the research and distribution of the results of the grants and 

contributions funded projects. 

Question: 

Do the previous three (3) projects have to be done exclusively on behalf of the bidder? Or are projects 

made by all the participants in the company accepted? 

Answer: 

All three (3) projects must have been completed by the bidder or one of the subcontractors included in 

the bid. 

Question: 

Can a partner already involved in another sub-section of the rover project be involved in this project? 

Answer: 

Where a proposed project is directly or indirectly related to a project that was previously funded 

through a CSA Announcement of Opportunity (AO) or a Request for Proposal (RFP), the applicant may 

still be eligible for funding as long as the proposed project activities are complementary in nature or are 

enhancements, and the applicable intellectual property rights and licenses are respected. 
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Question:  

 Any approximate number of pages we should aim for? 

 Is there a limit to how many supplementary documents we can attach to our proposal? E.g., 

showing our capacity in this field. 

Answer: 

There is no limit on the number of pages to be provided or to the number of supplementary documents 

that can be attached with a proposal. Please, ensure the proposal includes the necessary documentation 

to support compliance with the mandatory and point-rated evaluation criteria. 

Question: 

Is it possible to confirm if there is a template to follow? In the RFP document there are a few different 

Annexes. Can you confirm if any Annex that need to be included for the submission? I know you 

mentioned Annex G is required. Any other ones as well? 

Answer: 

In addition to the annex G, you have to complete annex F, as well. Furthermore, you must provide: a 

technical bid, a financial bid, and a certification attestation (part 5). You must meet the mandatory and 

the point-rated evaluation criteria in your technical bid. Please, ensure the proposal includes the 

necessary documentation to support compliance with the mandatory and point-rated evaluation 

criteria. For the financial bid we will evaluate the financial criteria, as mentioned in Part 4 Evaluation 

Procedures and Basis Selection, point 3 Financial evaluation. 

Question: 

How will the various payments be made where applicable? 

Answer: 

Deliverables 1 through 4 related to the Project Management will be paid according to the actual time 

spent on deliverables at the established hourly labour rates, upon submission of invoices. Deliverables 5 

through 8 will be completed upon request, through task authorizations and will be paid when tasks are 

completed and accepted, upon submission of invoices. You may begin the work once a task 

authorization has been approved by the Project Authority.  You will be reimbursed for travel, as per 

Treasury Board travel instructions, and you will be reimbursed for indirect costs incurred during the 

contract. You may refer to the RFP Basis of Payment, Appendix A. All reimbursements are subject to the 

total allowable expenditure limit for this initiative of $800,000, excluding applicable taxes. 

Question: 

 Could a copy of the recording be made available afterwards if possible? 

 Will this presentation be made available to all of us? 
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Answer: 

Only a list of questions and answers asked during the virtual bidder’s conference or sent by email to the 

Contracting Authority (marie-eve.soucy@asc-csa.ca) will be published and updated as new questions 

related to this initiative are received. 

mailto:marie-eve.soucy@asc-csa.ca

